
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

October 01, 2019 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. September 03, 2019 Minutes 

2. September 17, 2019 Minutes 

  

Calendars 
3. October, November and December 2019 

  

Consent Agenda 
4. Motion to accept as information the September 2019 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $488,877.71, TSPLOST in the amount of $152,078.98, SPLOST in the amount of 

$58,714.63, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $94,059.52 and the September 

2019 financials. 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
5. Leroy Morris is requesting conditional use approval to operate an animal processing 

facility on 59.96 acres located at 1612 Mergendollar Road (Tax Parcel 002-031B). 

6. Allen Dial is requesting conditional use approval for an accessory dwelling on 11.57 

acres located at 3371 Fairplay Road (Tax Parcel 009-019D). 

7. Allen Dial is requesting a variance to the minimum size for an accessory dwelling on 

11.57 acres at 3371 Fairplay Road (Tax Parcel 009-019D). 

8. Morgan County Planning & Development is proposing text amendments to Articles 3, 5 

& 7 related to building definitions and setback requirements. 

  

New Business 
9. Hardship Variance Appeal 

10. Resolution to extend Madison Lakes Development Agreement (2019-RES-007) 

11. Discussion on EMS 

12. Ag Board Opening 

13. Budget Amendment 

14. NCRS Lease Amendment Request 

15. County Manager's Report 

16. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  

1



COUNTY ATTORNEY EXECUTIVE SESSION 
17. Real Estate 
  

2



September 03, 2019 

 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Ronald H. Milton, Vice-Chair Philipp von Hanstein, Commissioners Andy A. 

Ainslie, Jr., Donald Harris and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

STAFF: Procurement Director Mark Williams, County Attorney Christian Henry and County Clerk 

Leslie Brandt. 

 

Commissioner Milton called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

Commissioner Harris gave the invocation. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

Motion made by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve agenda with the 

addition of Personnel under Executive as item #14.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MINUTES 

August 06, 2019 Minutes  

August 20, 2019 Minutes  

 

MOTION by Comm. Riden seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the minutes as presented.   

Unanimously Approved. 

 

CALENDARS 

Mark Williams reviewed the calendars for September, October and November 2019. 

                                        

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Motion to accept as information the August 2019 payables to include General Fund in the amount 

of $1,148,503.60, TSPLOST in the amount of $26,118.23, SPLOST in the amount of $62,150.63, 

General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $3,267.01 and the August 2019 financials. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Harris, seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the consent agenda as 

presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

BROUGHTON RD RESURFACING – REBID 

This rebid is for Broughton Road resurfacing and road widening, as well as, the Pierce Dairy Road section 

replacement project which was originally put out for bid on June 19, 2019.  On August 29, the County 

received four bids for the project.  After bid review, it is recommended that the County proceed with 

awarding the project to Pittman Construction Co. in the amount of $1,334,788 to be paid out of LMIG and 

TSPLOST line items. 

 

MOTION by Comm. von Hanstein seconded by Comm. Riden to award the road resurfacing project to 

Pittman Construction in the amount of $1,334,788 to be paid from LMIG and TSPLOST funding as 

presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER'S REPORT 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's 

current projects and/or issues.  (COPY:  Miscellaneous Book) 

3



 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – REAL ESTATE AND PERSONNEL 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. Riden to enter Executive Session to discuss real estate 

and personnel. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive Session Legal 

Requirement Book). 

 

Commissioner Riden exited executive session at 10:20 a.m. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to exit Executive Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to enter Regular Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

BOSTWICK PAWLEYS INVESTMENTS, LLLP, IS REQUESTING CONDITIONAL USE 

APPROVAL TO CONSTRUCT AN ACCESSORY DWELLING ON 483.02 ACRES LOCATED 

AT 1281 MALLORY ROAD (TAX PARCEL 017-001A). 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner stated the applicant has 483 acres with a hunting cabin and a barn. The cabin 

is approximately 1200 square feet and meets the definition of a primary dwelling. The applicant’s female 

family members feel the cabin is a bit primitive and refuse to stay there. The applicant is proposing a 2400 

square foot house to be constructed about 350’ from the existing cabin. The applicant had spoken to staff 

earlier in the year, when the ordinance stated that an accessory dwelling had to be half the size of the 

primary dwelling. The applicant was informed the language was going to be changed and turned in his 

building permit application after the text amendment was approved. The Planning Commission discussed 

whether the fact that the applicant had received information prior to the text change should affect the 

recommendation. The consensus was no. The ordinance is written to require property with allowable 

acreage to be split to allow a second home when both the existing home and proposed home meet or 

exceed the minimum square footage for the zoning district. The applicant admitted that he had already 

looked into splitting the property and the Planning Commission felt he should continue to pursue that 

route. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend denial of the application for an 

accessory dwelling at 1281 Mallory Road. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

No one spoke in favor. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to deny the conditional use request from 

Bostwick Pawleys Investments to construct an accessory dwelling on 483.02 acres located at 1281 Mallory 

Road (Tax Parcel 017-001A). Unanimously Denied. 

 

4



 3 

PERCO EQUIPMENT RENTALS, LLC, IS REQUESTING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 

FOR 0.87 ACRES LOCATED AT 1540 GREENSBORO HIGHWAY, FROM C2 (GENERAL 

COMMERCIAL) TO C3 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) (TAX PARCEL 035-108). 

                                                         & 

PERCO EQUIPMENT RENTAL, LLC, IS REQUESTING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FOR 

2 ACRES LOCATED AT 1542 GREENSBORO HIGHWAY, FROM C2 (GENERAL 

COMMERCIAL) TO C3 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) (TAX PARCEL 035-109A). 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner presented zoning map amendment for tax parcels 035-108 and 035-109A 

together.  Cooner stated the location is the old Smoking Gun restaurant and Charles Bradley’s soda 

blasting business next to it and the empty parcel behind those buildings. The applicant is seeking to operate 

an equipment rental and sales business at this location. A rental business is allowed in the current zoning 

district, but the equipment sales requires a C3 designation. The zoning history on this property is 

complicated, but both parcels were rezoned to C3 in 2004. When the new Zoning Atlas was approved in 

2006, the parcels were changed to C2 for the front parcel and AR for the rear parcel. The rear parcel was 

rezoned to C2 in 2013. The Future Land Use Map shows the area as industrial. The Planning Commission 

acknowledged the precedent and the Future Land Use Map and voted unanimously to approved both 

rezoning applications for parcels 035-108 and 035-109A, from C2 to C3. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

No one spoke in favor. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the request for zoning map 

amendment for tax parcels 035-108 and 035-019A from C2 to C3. Unanimously Approved. 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT IS REQUESTING A TEXT 

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 4 OF THE MORGAN COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

REGARDING FARM TENANT DWELLINGS. 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner stated, with ordinances for short term rentals and the language for accessory 

dwellings, we have people looking for loopholes for rental income and they think they have found one. 

We have received several requests for farm tenant dwellings on properties with no farms. We don’t want 

to remove the option to have farm tenant dwellings, so we are proposing to change them to conditional 

instead of permitted. We’ve only had 2 applications for legitimate farm tenant dwellings in my 11 years. 

They have both been for Dave Clark. The Planning Commission also requested a definition for working 

farm. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the text amendment for 

farm tenant dwellings.  

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

No one spoke in favor. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

5



 4 

MOTION by Comm. Harris seconded by Comm. Ainslie to approve the text amendment for farm tenant 

dwellings to article 4 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT IS REQUESTING A TEXT 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 7.1 OF THE MORGAN COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

RELATED TO ACCESSORY BUILDINGS. 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner presented the proposed text amendment for accessory buildings.  Cooner 

stated, this is another modification to the accessory buildings language. The first change is to prohibit 

certain structures as accessory buildings. We have had constant questions about the use of old construction 

trailers, old school buses, old RVs. These structures are not attractive, it looks like junk in the yard, but 

more importantly, they are not always safe. The second change is to allow primary dwellings in an 

accessory building. We now have language that allows an accessory dwelling to be in an accessory 

building, but we have requests for a primary dwelling in a barn or metal building. Folks want to build a 

2000 square foot house in their barn. We are not opposed to that, as long as people understand that is their 

main house. This language provides for that. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend 

approval of the text amendment for accessory buildings.  

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

No one spoke in favor. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Harris seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the text amendment for 

accessory buildings to chapter 7.1 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to exit regular session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to adjourn.  Unanimously Approved.  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ronald H. Milton, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

6



September 17, 2019 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Ronald H. Milton, Vice-Chair Philipp von Hanstein, Commissioners Andy A. 

Ainslie, Jr., Donald Harris and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry and County Clerk 

Leslie Brandt. 

 

Commissioner Milton called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Commissioner Harris gave the invocation. 

  

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve agenda as 

presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

HOSPITAL BOARD OPENING 

The Board voted at the July 2, 2019 BOC meeting to table this item until more applications were received 

for the position left vacant by Mary Ellen Shannon.  Since then, we have received one other application 

from Sally Buffington.  We also have on file, an application from Wendell McNeal that was previously 

presented for this opening. 

 

The Hospital Board voted last month to recommend Sally Buffington to the vacant position. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to appoint Sally Buffington to the 

Hospital Board with term ending June 30, 2022. Unanimously Approved. 

 

RECREATION BOARD OPENING 

One application for the recreation board opening was received from Thomas Burden.  If appointed, Mr. 

Burden would complete the term left vacant by Joey Lancaster, with term ending February 29, 2020. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to appoint Thomas Burden to 

complete the term left vacant by Joey Lancaster on the Recreation Board with term ending February 29, 

2020. Unanimously Approved. 

 

FY 2019 YEAR-END BUDGET AMENDMENT 

This year end amendment will serve as a transfer out of Capital Fund in order to help defray the cost for 

the upcoming Schneider Project and other future capital needs.   

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the FY2019 year-end 

budget amendment as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMPLEX ACCESS CONTROL REPLACEMENT/UPGRADE 

7



This request is for equipment upgrades or replacements for access controls at the Public Safety Complex 

due to age and interoperability.  The original system was purchased in 2009 and been in need of 

upgrade/repair for several years.   

 

Motion by Comm. von Hanstein, Seconded by Comm. Riden to approve the replacement/upgrade of the 

Public Safety Complex access control systems from Stanley Security for $47,700. Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to Regular exit Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously Approved.  

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ronald H. Milton, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1612 Mergendollar Road   

Property tax parcel: 002-031B   

Acreage: 59.96 acres  

Applicant: Leroy Morris 

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Leroy Morris  

Existing Use: Agriculture  

Proposed Use: Agriculture with deer processing  

 

Summary 

        
 

Leroy Morris has 

requested conditional use 

approval to operate a 

deer processing business 

out of his barn located at 

1612 Mergendollar Road. 

Mr. Morris has already 

spoken to the Department 

of Natural Resources and 

has submitted an 

application for a storage 

permit (see enclosed 

copy). 

 

The structure with the 

white roof (red circle) is 

the barn proposed to be 

used. The property is 

adjacent to another 

property owned by the 

applicant which contains 

the applicant’s home 

(yellow circle). The barn 

and the home share a 

driveway, which follows 

the property line.  

 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Animal Processing 

        

25



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The proposed location is a 

barn that, according to the 

Tax Assessor’s was 

constructed in 2004 and is 

52’ x 72’. Staff measured the 

building on the aerial as 72’ 

x 84’. No building permit 

could be located between 

years 2002-2006 for the 

address. If approved, the 

structure will require an 

inspection prior to the 

issuance of an Occupational 

Tax Certificate.  

 

The building has a sign on 

the exterior that indicates the 

applicant operated a gutter 

and sheet metal business at 

the location. The last year an 

Occupational Tax Certificate 

was found for the business 

was 2009. 

 

 
The applicant submitted a drawing of his proposed floor plan and has apparently begun construction of 

the coolers necessary for the operation. See photos next page. 

26



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The barn 

has an open 

door on the 

side, which 

corresponds 

with the 

arrow 

shown on 

the plan on 

the previous 

page.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Looking into 

the barn, the 

white walled 

partitions in 

the back are 

the cooler 

and cutting 

room 

currently 

under 

construction. 

Meat 

processing 

equipment is 

sitting to the 

side (circle). 

 

 

27



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The subject parcel is zoned AG – Agricultural. Animal Processing is a Conditional Use in the AG zoning 

district. Unincorporated Morgan County currently has one approved animal processing facility, which is 

operated by Rob Glosson on Sidwell Road. The Town of Buckhead has one approved deer processing 

facility, behind the old city hall at the corner of Parks Mill Road and Seven Islands Road.  

The applicant stated in his letter than he intends to bag waste from the site and take it to an approved 

landfill. This is an acceptable method of disposing waste from a deer processing facility.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 
 

5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
 Staff has no concerns regarding the application. The applicant will have to provide an approved storage 

permit for DNR and pass a site inspection prior to the issuance of an Occupational Tax Certificate. 

29



30



31



32



33



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 3371 Fairplay Road  

Property tax parcel: 009-019D  

Acreage: 11.57  

Applicant: Allen Dial  

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Allen Dial 

Existing Use: Residence under construction 

Proposed Use: Residence with accessory dwelling  

Variance Requested: Increase the minimum square footage of an accessory dwelling  

  

Summary 

        
Allen Dial is requesting conditional use approval for an accesssory dwelling to be attached to his primary 

dwelling located on 11.5 acres at 3371 Fairplay Road.  

The building 

permit for the 

primary dwelling 

has already been 

issued and 

construction has 

started. At the 

time the staff 

report was 

written, the slab 

had been 

inspected. The 

applicant 

submitted a 

separate site plan 

showing the 

location of the 

house and 

attached accessory 

dwelling. 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Accessory Dwelling 

                               Variance – Minimum Square Footage  

        

34



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

 
 

The floorplan is for the attached accessory dwelling. The plan was submitted as part of the main set of 

plans. When told they could not construct the accessory dwelling without conditional use approval, a 

line was drawn through the accessory plan to indicate that it was not to be constructed.  

 

The proposed plan is 1,044 heated square feet with a 175 square foot screened porch. The total heated 

and unheated together is 1,219 square feet. The Morgan County Zoning Ordinance allows a maximum of 

800 heated square feet and a maximum total of 1,000 square feet.  

 

The accessory dwelling has only 2 doors into the space: one from the screened porch in the back and 

one from the garage that is shared with the main house.  

 

35



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The garage plan shows the two 

car that goes to the main 

house and the one car garage 

that goes with the accessory 

dwelling. The breezeway 

shown from the garage is the 

same breezeway shown on the 

accessory dwelling plan. See 

the applicant’s site plan for a 

full plan outline. 

 

The accessory dwelling is for 

the applicant’s in-laws, Mr. & 

Mrs. Eddie Sweat. The 

applicant stated in his letter 

that, in addition to the Sweat’s 

financial investment in the 

combined dwelling, the 

applicant and his wife seek to 

be near her parents due to 

health concerns.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The subject parcel is zoned AG (Agricultural), as 

are all of the adjacent parcels. On Fairplay Road, 

the zoning changes to AR (Agricultural 

Residential) towards the City of Rutledge.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
 Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. Section 20.3.1, Required Findings for Variance Approval: 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the property because of size, 
shape and topography; 

2. The literal application of this Ordinance would create an unnecessary hardship; 

3. A variance would not cause substantial detriment to public good and impair the purposes and 

intent of this Ordinance; 

4. A variance would not confer upon the property of the applicant any special privilege denied to 

other properties in the district; 

5. The special circumstances surrounding the request for the variance are not the result of acts of 

the applicant; 

6. The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, buildings, or structures which is not 

permitted by right or by conditional use in the district; 

7. The zoning proposal is consistent with all standards and criteria adopted by Morgan County; 

The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible an economically viable use of the 

land, building or structure 

37



5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Staff Comments 

        
This is the third accessory dwelling application we have seen since the ordinance changed for accessory 

dwellings. This one is considerably different from the other two in that the accessory dwelling is 

attached to the main dwelling and residents for the second house are not only identified but involved in 

the construction process. Prior to the ordinance change, an accessory dwelling was not questioned if it 

was attached to the main dwelling, as the connected roof deems them one structure according to 

building code. The connection, or combining of dwellings however, did not stop people from building 

the second dwellings for rental space. In this instance, the active participation of the accessory 

dwelling’s proposed residents minimizes the possibility of the space being constructed solely for rental 

income. Due to these factors, Staff has no issues with the accessory dwelling conditional use request. 

The applicant has requested the ability to construct the dwellings concurrently, and Staff is supportive of 

that request. 

 

The variance request may be more complicated. The proposed dwelling is roughly 200 square feet larger 

than is allowed. No justification was given as to why the space needed to be larger. Prior to the 

ordinance change, no limit was placed on the size of an accessory dwelling if it was attached to the main 

dwelling. The new ordinance language limits an accessory dwelling to 800 square feet regardless of 

whether it is separate, connected or integrated. Questions should be asked at the meeting of the 

applicant as to why the space must be larger than allowed. Consideration should be given whether the 

request would constitute a precedent and, if so, whether the specifics of this request (connected, 

limited access, main entrance through shared space) are enough to justify a precedent.  

 

 

 

38



39



40



41



42



43



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 3371 Fairplay Road  

Property tax parcel: 009-019D  

Acreage: 11.57  

Applicant: Allen Dial  

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Allen Dial 

Existing Use: Residence under construction 

Proposed Use: Residence with accessory dwelling  

Variance Requested: Increase the minimum square footage of an accessory dwelling  

  

Summary 

        
Allen Dial is requesting conditional use approval for an accesssory dwelling to be attached to his primary 

dwelling located on 11.5 acres at 3371 Fairplay Road.  

The building 

permit for the 

primary dwelling 

has already been 

issued and 

construction has 

started. At the 

time the staff 

report was 

written, the slab 

had been 

inspected. The 

applicant 

submitted a 

separate site plan 

showing the 

location of the 

house and 

attached accessory 

dwelling. 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Accessory Dwelling 

                               Variance – Minimum Square Footage  

        

44



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

 
 

The floorplan is for the attached accessory dwelling. The plan was submitted as part of the main set of 

plans. When told they could not construct the accessory dwelling without conditional use approval, a 

line was drawn through the accessory plan to indicate that it was not to be constructed.  

 

The proposed plan is 1,044 heated square feet with a 175 square foot screened porch. The total heated 

and unheated together is 1,219 square feet. The Morgan County Zoning Ordinance allows a maximum of 

800 heated square feet and a maximum total of 1,000 square feet.  

 

The accessory dwelling has only 2 doors into the space: one from the screened porch in the back and 

one from the garage that is shared with the main house.  

 

45



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The garage plan shows the two 

car that goes to the main 

house and the one car garage 

that goes with the accessory 

dwelling. The breezeway 

shown from the garage is the 

same breezeway shown on the 

accessory dwelling plan. See 

the applicant’s site plan for a 

full plan outline. 

 

The accessory dwelling is for 

the applicant’s in-laws, Mr. & 

Mrs. Eddie Sweat. The 

applicant stated in his letter 

that, in addition to the Sweat’s 

financial investment in the 

combined dwelling, the 

applicant and his wife seek to 

be near her parents due to 

health concerns.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The subject parcel is zoned AG (Agricultural), as 

are all of the adjacent parcels. On Fairplay Road, 

the zoning changes to AR (Agricultural 

Residential) towards the City of Rutledge.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
 Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. Section 20.3.1, Required Findings for Variance Approval: 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the property because of size, 
shape and topography; 

2. The literal application of this Ordinance would create an unnecessary hardship; 

3. A variance would not cause substantial detriment to public good and impair the purposes and 

intent of this Ordinance; 

4. A variance would not confer upon the property of the applicant any special privilege denied to 

other properties in the district; 

5. The special circumstances surrounding the request for the variance are not the result of acts of 

the applicant; 

6. The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, buildings, or structures which is not 

permitted by right or by conditional use in the district; 

7. The zoning proposal is consistent with all standards and criteria adopted by Morgan County; 

The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible an economically viable use of the 

land, building or structure 

47



5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Staff Comments 

        
This is the third accessory dwelling application we have seen since the ordinance changed for accessory 

dwellings. This one is considerably different from the other two in that the accessory dwelling is 

attached to the main dwelling and residents for the second house are not only identified but involved in 

the construction process. Prior to the ordinance change, an accessory dwelling was not questioned if it 

was attached to the main dwelling, as the connected roof deems them one structure according to 

building code. The connection, or combining of dwellings however, did not stop people from building 

the second dwellings for rental space. In this instance, the active participation of the accessory 

dwelling’s proposed residents minimizes the possibility of the space being constructed solely for rental 

income. Due to these factors, Staff has no issues with the accessory dwelling conditional use request. 

The applicant has requested the ability to construct the dwellings concurrently, and Staff is supportive of 

that request. 

 

The variance request may be more complicated. The proposed dwelling is roughly 200 square feet larger 

than is allowed. No justification was given as to why the space needed to be larger. Prior to the 

ordinance change, no limit was placed on the size of an accessory dwelling if it was attached to the main 

dwelling. The new ordinance language limits an accessory dwelling to 800 square feet regardless of 

whether it is separate, connected or integrated. Questions should be asked at the meeting of the 

applicant as to why the space must be larger than allowed. Consideration should be given whether the 

request would constitute a precedent and, if so, whether the specifics of this request (connected, 

limited access, main entrance through shared space) are enough to justify a precedent.  

 

 

 

48



49



50



51



52



53



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Applicant: Morgan County Planning & Development 

Applicant’s Agent: N/A   

Zoning Ordinance: Article 3, Definitions 

 Article 5, Chapter 5.5  Minimum Required Yards and Building Setbacks 

 Article 5, Chapter 5.9  Minimum Distance Between Buildings 

 Article 7, Chapter 7.1  Accessory Buildings 

  

Summary 

        
Morgan County Planning and Development has experienced an increase in builders who cannot, or will 

not, work within established setbacks. Contradictions in the zoning language have prevented the 

Buildings Inspector and Code Enforcement from successfully enforcing the setback ordinances when 

these situations arise. This issue has also extended to the distance required between buildings.  

The definitions contradicted each other and the setback information in Article 5. We are proposing to 

condense and simply the definitions. Since builders have used the language for projections to justify 

their encroachment into setbacks, we are removing the language that allows for parts of the building to 

protrude into setbacks. We are proposing to remove Chapter 5.9 regarding the minimum distance 

between buildings as the language relates to commercial or attached housing more than single family 

residential. These dimensional requirements are covered separately in the specific regulations for 

commercial and attached housing, so any reference here creates the potential for more contradiction in 

the future.  

Finally, we are proposing a reduction to the amount of space required between buildings. The 20 foot 

distance has been required for fire safety. We have repeatedly had builders violate this distance 

requirement and argue about the fire safety aspect. Further to that argument is the accepted method of 

solving the distance requirement, which is to connect the structures with a breezeway to make them 

one structure under code. The question:  Does the breezeway change the fire safety dynamic? The 

answer is no, or perhaps it makes it worse.  The new building code only requires 5 feet between 

structures. Staff is not satisfied with only 5 feet for maintenance and aesthetic reasons but have 

resolved to propose a compromise of 10 feet. This will not affect the distance requirements, per code, 

for commercial spaces. 

 

 

Petition for:  Text Amendment 

        

54



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

Current and Proposed Language 

        
Chapter 3 Definitions 

 

Building:  Anything attached to the ground having a roof supported by columns or by walls and intended 

for shelter, housing or enclosure of persons, animals or personal property.  For purposes of this 

ordinance, the term “building” includes “structure”, as defined.  

 

Building – Any structure used or intended for supporting or sheltering any use or occupancy. 

Building Setback Line:  A line establishing the minimum allowable distance between the main or front 

wall of a principal building and the street right-of-way line or another building wall and a side or rear 

property line when measured perpendicularly thereto.  Covered porches, whether enclosed or not, shall 

be considered as a part of the building and shall not project into any required yards.  For purposes of 

this Ordinance, a building setback line and minimum required yard shall be considered the same. 

 

Setback, Building:  A line establishing the minimum allowable distance between the front of a principal 
building and the street right-of-way line or another building wall and a side or rear property line when 
measured perpendicular thereto.  The building setback line will be measured perpendicularly from the 
property line to the nearest point of the building, including any material portions thereof that protrude 
outward from the main building.  Covered porches, whether enclosed or not, shall be considered as a 
part of the building and shall not project into any required yards.  For purposes of this Ordinance, a 
building setback line and minimum yard shall be considered the same. 
 
Setback:  The minimum distance by which any building or structure must be separated from the street 
right-of-way or lot line. 
 
Structure:  Anything built, constructed or erected, or established or composed of parts joined together 

in some definite manner, the use of which requires location on the ground or which is attached to 

something having permanent location on the ground. 

Structure:  Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires permanent location on the 

ground or attached to something having a permanent location on the ground, excluding fences, septic 

tanks, septic systems and facilities associated with the provision of utilities. 

Yard:  A space on the same lot with a principal building, open unoccupied and unobstructed by buildings 

or structures from ground to sky except where encroachments and accessory buildings are expressly 

permitted. 

 

Yard:  An open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot lines, unoccupied and 

unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward. In measuring a yard for the 

55



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

purpose of determining the width of a side yard, the depth of a front yard or the depth of a rear yard, 

the minimum horizontal distance between the lot line and the building shall be used. 

 

Yard, front:  An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a principal building, extending the full 

width of the lot, and situated between the street right-of-way and the front line of the building 

projected to the side lines of the lot. 

 

Yard, side:  An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with the principal building, situated between the 

building and the side line of the lot and extending from the rear line of the front yard to the front line of 

the rear yard. 

 

Yard, rear:  An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a principal building, extending the full 

width of the lot and situated between the rear line of the lot and the rear line of the building projected 

to the side lines of the lot. 

 

Chapter 5.5   Minimum Required Yards and Building Setbacks 

 

No building shall hereafter be erected in a manner to have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, or 

side yards than specified for the use district in which the property is located, or for specific use if yards 

and setback regulations pertain to a specific use in this Ordinance. No lot shall be reduced in size, and no 

principal building shall hereafter be constructed, so that the front, side or rear yards required by the use 

district in which said lot and building are located are not maintained. No part of a yard or other open 

space required for one building shall be included as part of a yard of other open space similarly required 

for another building. Every part of a required yard or court shall be unoccupied and unobstructed by any 

portion of a structure from the ground upward. open from its lowest point to the sky unobstructed., except 

for the ordinary projection of sills, cornices, buttresses, ornamental features, chimneys, flues, and eaves, 

provided such projections do not extend more than 2 feet into the yard area requirements. This Chapter 

shall not apply when a portion of a lot is acquired for a public purpose. As established by this Ordinance, 

the application of buffer requirements supersedes these minimum required yards. 

 

Chapter 5.9   Minimum Distance Between Buildings 

 

The following minimum distances between buildings are required unless otherwise specified within this 

Ordinance. The minimum distance between principal buildings located on the same lot or parcel: 

 

• Front to front arrangement:  40 feet 

• Front to rear arrangement:  50 feet 

• Rear to rear arrangement:  30 feet 

• Side to side arrangement:  20 feet 

• All other combinations:  20 feet 

 

There shall be a distance of not less than 20 feet between a principal buildings and accessory building 

located on the same parcel or lot.  

 

56



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Chapter 7.1   Accessory Buildings 

 

• A detached accessory building shall not be closer than twenty (20) ten (10) feet to the principal 

any building or use. The distance between buildings will be treated as a minimum required yard 

with all applicable regulations. 

 

 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73


	Top
	1. September 03, 2019 Minutes
	09-03-2019 Regular Minutes - DRAFT

	2. September 17, 2019 Minutes
	09-17-2019 BOC Minutes - DRAFT

	3. October, November and December 2019 Calendars
	Oct-Dec 2019 Calendars

	4. Sept 2019 Financials
	Sept. 2019 Financials

	5. Morris deer processing conditional use
	staffreport.sept.morris.cu.animalproc

	6. Allen Dial accessory dwelling conditional use
	staffreport.sept.dial.cu-var

	7. Allen Dial square footage variance
	staffreport.sept.dial.cu-var

	8. Text Amendments Articles 3, 5 & 7
	staffreport.sept.mc.ta.Art357

	9. Hardship Variance Appeal
	Hardship Variance Appeal

	10. Resolution to extend Madison Lakes Development Agreement (2019-RES-007)
	Resolution to extend Madison Lakes Development Agreement

	11. Discussion on EMS
	12. Ag Board Opening
	Ag Board Opening

	13. Budget Amendment
	20191001_MORGAN COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

	14. NCRS Lease Amendment Request
	NCRS Lease Amendment Request

	15. County Manager's Report
	16. Public Comments on Agenda Items
	17. Real Estate
	Bottom

